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Dear  

Freedom of Information Request 2020-011 

Thank you for contacting CITB requesting information under the Freedom of Information Act 

2000 (FOIA).  In your request, dated 16 June 2020, you asked for the following: 

1. Please provide the figures for the total levy paid and grant received by employers 

counted in each prescribed organisation in 2019? 

2. Please provide the 2018 and 2019 figures for the total levy paid and grant received by 

employers who stated a federation on their levy return form affiliated to Build UK. Please 

specify the levy paid and grant received for each of the affiliated Build UK federations. 

My response is as follows: 

1. Please provide the figures for the total levy paid and grant received by employers 

counted in each prescribed organisation in 2019? 

The levy amount due is based upon an annual Levy Assessment, which in turn is based 

upon an employer’s Levy Return.  In responding to your request for the total levy paid in 

2019, we have based this on the levy due for the financial year April 2019 – March 2020, 

compiled from the assessment of the 2018 Levy Returns.  The figures on the table below, 

for both levy and grant, therefore relate to the 2019/20 financial year. 

Prescribed Organisation Grant Levy 

British Woodworking Federation (BWF) 818,182  1,056,318  

Build UK 15,866,527  34,095,229  

Civil Engineering Contractors Association (CECA) 11,588,445  16,959,860  

Construction Plant-hire Association (CPA) 6,476,759  10,734,485  

Federation of Master Builders (FMB) 7,702,288  16,048,604  

Finishes and Interiors Sector (FIS) 1,566,406  5,975,808  

Hire Association Europe (HAE) 1,368,201  1,671,903  

Home Builders Federation (HBF) 8,046,355  23,271,121  



 

Prescribed Organisation Grant Levy 

National Association of Shopfitters (NAS) 472,805  1,692,873  

National Federation of Builders (NFB) 4,044,052  10,689,015  

National Federation of Demolition Contractors 
(NFDC) 1,032,665  2,472,676  

Scottish Building Federation (SBF) 4,078,433  5,285,212  

Scottish Decorators Federation (SDF) 1,281,296  662,069  

Scottish Plant Owners Association (SPOA) 1,058,459  1,436,758  

Total 65,400,872  132,051,928  

NB: The figures in the table above will include an element of double counting; where an 

employer is a member of more than one Prescribed Organisation the levy they have paid 

and the grant they have received will be recorded against each Prescribed Organisation.  

For example, if Employer A paid levy of £1,000 and declared that they are a member of 

BWF and Build UK, then £1,000 would be included within the Levy figures for both BWF 

and Build UK.  Similarly if they received grant of £1,000 this figure would be included within 

the grant figure for both. 

2. Please provide the 2018 and 2019 figures for the total levy paid and grant received by 

employers who stated a federation on their levy return form affiliated to Build UK. 

Please specify the levy paid and grant received for each of the affiliated Build UK 

federations 

As detailed in response to Q1, above, the Levy payment covers a March – April financial 

year, based upon an employer’s Levy Return.  In responding to your request for “the 2018 

and 2019 figures” we have taken this to be the relevant financial years covering the period 

March 2018 – April 2019, and March 2019 – April 2020. 

The list of affiliated Build UK federations you provided in your request is included in 

Appendix A.  The levy paid and the grant received by employers that stated they were a 

member of one of these affiliated federations is also included. 

Your request also included two federations, the Glass & Glazing Federation (GGF) and the 

Specialist Access Engineering and Maintenance Association (SAEMA), which are no longer 

members of Build UK, and therefore no information has been provided in relation to them. 

As per my response to Q1, above, the figures in Appendix A will include an element of 

double counting; where an employer is a member of more than one Prescribed 

Organisation the levy they have paid and the grant they have received will be recorded 

against each Prescribed Organisation.  For example, if Employer A paid levy of £1,000 and 

declared that they are a member of ACAD and ARCA, then £1,000 would be included 

within the Levy figures for both ACAD and ARCA.  Similarly if they received grant of £1,000 

this figure would be included within the grant figure for both. 

  



 
Section 44 of the Freedom of Information Act prohibits disclosure if it is not allowed under 

law.  The Industrial Training Act, within Section 6.2 and 6.3a does not permit the sharing of 

details of levy payers unless it is “in the form of a summary … so framed as not to enable 

particulars relating to any individual business to be ascertained from it”.  When providing 

details of groups of levy payers we have taken the view that a group of fewer than five may 

mean that an individual employer could be identified, therefore where a federation, as listed 

in Appendix A, has fewer than five members I have removed the amount of levy paid by 

that federation’s members, although the amount has been included within the overall levy 

total. 

If you are unhappy with this response, or you wish to complain about any aspect of the handling 

of your request, then you should contact me in the first instance. If informal resolution is not 

possible and you are still dissatisfied, then you may apply for an independent internal review by 

contacting Adrian Beckingham, Corporate Performance Director, CITB, Sand Martin House, 

Bittern Way, Peterborough, PB2 8TY or email adrian.beckingham@citb.co.uk. 

If you remain unhappy following an internal review, you may take your complaint to the 

Information Commissioner under the provisions of Section 50 of the Freedom of Information 

Act. Further details of the role and powers of the Information Commissioner can be found on the 

Commissioners website: https://ico.org.uk/ 

 

Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Jonathan Francis 
Information Risk & Data Governance Manager 
 
  








